
Scrutiny Sovereign 
Centre Task Group
6 June 2018

Time and venue: 6.00 pm in Meeting Room One, Eastbourne Town Hall

Membership: Councillors; Colin Belsey, Paul Metcalfe and Pat Rodohan

Quorum: 3

Published: 25 May 2018

Agenda
1 Apologies for absence  

2 Election of the Chair for this Scrutiny Task Group  

3 Declarations of interests  

Declarations of interests by members as required under Section 31 of the 
Localism Act and of other interests as required by the Code of Conduct and 
regulation 12(2)(d) of the 2012 Access to Information Regulations. 

4 Task Group Membership  

5 Urgent items of business  

The Chair to notify the Scrutiny Committee of any items of urgent business to be 
added to the agenda.

6 Sovereign Centre Scrutiny Task Group - Preliminary Meeting  (Pages 1 - 18)

Report of the Scrutiny Officer.

Public Document Pack



Information for the public
Accessibility:  Please note that the venue for this meeting is wheelchair accessible and 
has an induction loop to help people who are hearing impaired. This agenda and 
accompanying reports are published on the Council’s website in PDF format which means 
you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe Acrobat Reader.

Filming/Recording: This meeting may be filmed, recorded or broadcast by any 
person or organisation. Anyone wishing to film or record must notify the Chair prior to 
the start of the meeting. Members of the public attending the meeting are deemed to 
have consented to be filmed or recorded, as liability for this is not within the Council’s 
control.

Public participation: Please contact Democratic Services (see end of agenda) for the 
relevant deadlines for registering to speak on a matter which is listed on the agenda if 
applicable.

Information for councillors
Disclosure of interests:  Members should declare their interest in a matter at the 
beginning of the meeting. 

In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not registered 
(nor the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the interest must be 
reported to the meeting by the member and subsequently notified in writing to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days.

If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room when 
the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation).

Councillor right of address: Councillors wishing to address the meeting who are not 
members of the committee must notify the Chairman and Democratic Services in 
advance (and no later than immediately prior to the start of the meeting).

Democratic Services
For any further queries regarding this agenda or notification of apologies please 
contact Democratic Services.

Email: committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk  

Telephone: 01323 410000

Website: http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/ 

 
modern.gov app available
View upcoming public committee documents on your iPad or Android Device with the free 
modern.gov app.

mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en


3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: Sovereign Centre Task Group 

Date: 6 June 2018

Title: Preliminary meeting of the Sovereign Centre Scrutiny Task 
Group 

Report of: Jazmin Victory, Scrutiny Officer

Cabinet member: Councillor Bannister

Ward: Sovereign 

Purpose of the 
report:

To finalise the scope and terms of reference for a Scrutiny 
Review regarding the options for the current Sovereign Centre 
Site.

Decision type: Non-key  

Recommendation: The Scrutiny Committee is recommended to agree the scope 
and terms of reference for a Scrutiny Review regarding the 
options for the current Sovereign Centre Site.

Reason for 
recommendation:

To comply with Scrutiny Procedure Rule 23.1, that the Task 
Group hold a preliminary meeting where it sets its terms of 
reference, and a timescale for reporting back to the Scrutiny 
Committee.

Contact: Jazmin Victory, Scrutiny Officer, jazmin.victory@lewes-
eastboune.gov.uk, 01323 415811

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Scrutiny Committee received a work programme request from Councillor di 
Cara at its September 2017 meeting and endorsed the creation of a Sovereign 
Centre Task Group for inclusion on its work programme. A copy of which is 
attached at Appendix A. Subsequently, Council met in November 2017 and 
resolved the scrutiny work programme unanimously.

Part 4 of the Constitution of the Council sets out how Task Groups will operate.
Members’ attention is drawn to 23.1:

“A preliminary meeting will be held attended by the councillors appointed to the 
task group, the Scrutiny Secretary and the relevant Lead Officer for the 
purposes of:

a) Determining the overall content and scope of the issue, subject to 
any terms of reference already established by the Scrutiny 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6

mailto:jazmin.victory@lewes-eastboune.gov.uk
mailto:jazmin.victory@lewes-eastboune.gov.uk


Committee.
b) Agreeing the persons to be invited to answer questions and/or give 

evidence.
c) Setting the approach to be taken (e.g. workshops, interviews, 

presentations, etc.)
d) Scheduling sessions (e.g. full day, one or two half days, one or two 

evenings).”

As Lead Officer, the Senior Planning Policy Officer will present officer 
considerations to the Scrutiny Sovereign Centre Committee, at its first meeting 
on 6 June 2018.

2.0 Terms of reference

2.1 The proposed scope for the Task Group is:

To make informative recommendations following consultations with relevant 
professionals regarding what types of development may be appropriate for the 
current Sovereign Centre site once it becomes vacant, as well as identifying 
what may not be appropriate in the best interest of the public and the Council’s 
strategic objectives.

2.2 The proposed terms of reference of the task group are:

i) To understand the planning policy considerations of the Sovereign 
Centre site;

ii) To consider options for the site, as presented by officers and;
iii) To recommend a preferred option for the site to the Cabinet on 20 

March 2019.

2.3 In order for the Scrutiny Committee to make its report and recommendations to 
Cabinet on 20 March 2019, the task group must conclude its work and prepare 
its report to Scrutiny Committee by 4 February 2019. This would demonstrate 
the efficient discharge of the scrutiny function to prepare recommendations for 
consideration.

2.4 The proposed approach for this task group is that there are three meetings of 
the group to complete each of the three parts of its terms of reference. The 
format of these sessions (workshops, presentations, interviews) is dependent 
upon who the group decide to invite to future meetings.

3.0 Corporate plan and council policies

3.1 Recommendations from this review would be relevant to two corporate plan 
priority themes: 

 Priority Theme 1 – Prosperous Economy
 Priority Theme 3 – Thriving Communities 

Page 2



4.0 Business case and alternative option(s) considered

4.1 Scrutiny Procedure Rule 1.4 provides that the Scrutiny Committee should be the 
key mechanism for enabling councillors to represent the views of their 
constituents and other organisations, and to ensure that these views are taken 
into account in policy development.

4.2 The Committee could have chosen to have conducted the review in a 
Committee setting. The preferred option chosen by the Committee at its last 
meeting was to form a task group.  The task group approach is a more direct, 
engaged and enabling vehicle for the production of recommendations from 
members for the Scrutiny Committee to consider. 

5.0 Outcome expected and performance management

5.1 The outcome from the group will be the making of recommendations to the 
Scrutiny Committee. The making of recommendations by the Scrutiny 
Committee to the Cabinet would conclude the work of the Task Group. 

6.0 Financial appraisal

6.1 The scrutiny function is budgeted for, and the formation of this task group is part 
of the planned work of the function, within existing resources. 

7.0 Legal implications

7.1 The Scrutiny Procedure Rules are set out in Part 4 of the Constitution. This 
report complies with those rules. 

8.0 Equality analysis

8.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report. 

9.0 Conclusion

9.1 That the task group be appointed and commences its work in order to make 
recommendations to the Scrutiny Committee on 4 February 2019 and to the 
Cabinet on 20 March 2019. 

Appendices

 Appendix A - Work programme request, 4 September 2017
 Appendix B - Sovereign Centre Planning Policy Position

Background papers

The background papers used in compiling this report were as follows:

 The Constitution of the Council http://bit.ly/2hF8xaU 

Page 3

http://bit.ly/2hF8xaU


This page is intentionally left blank



Request by Councillor for a Scrutiny review

Guidance Notes

Members can request the Scrutiny Committee to hold a review into an 
important subject or matter of concern in the Borough. It need not relate 
purely to services provided by the Council and could cover any matter effecting 
local residents or businesses.

The Council focuses its scrutiny activities on the things that matter most and 
on outcomes that can make a real difference for local people. It simply has not 
got the resources to look at everything that might be suggested and therefore 
has to prioritise. The Council’s suggested criteria for selecting reviews are as 
follows (this information is also contained within the Scrutiny Guide, which all 
members will have received a copy):

 Members identify key issue for the public
 Poor performing services
 High level of user dissatisfaction 
 High level of resource in the area
 Government/council high priority area
 New government guidance or legislation
 Media attention

For each review undertaken there should be:

 Key reasons for undertaking the review
 What the review is expected to achieve
 Agreed measures for identifying a successful review
 A project plan specifying the timetable and methodology (what evidence will 

be gathered, what consultation will take place)
 Consultation as to the composition of the panel which maybe undertaking 

the review

Please bear in mind when suggesting a topic for review that the following 
information will be needed and that where possible you provide as much 
information for the Scope and Terms of reference.  This will assist the Chair 
and Deputy Chair when considering which three items will be selected for 
inclusion into the Annual Work Programme.

Scrutiny does not get involved in minor matters or individual concerns which 
are not of wider community significance. These need to be pursued through 
the appropriate Service Unit, Ward Councillors or Executive Member 
responsible. Nor does scrutiny deal with individual complaints which are dealt 
with through the Council’s complaints procedure. Other topics not appropriate 
for scrutiny include: matters already being addressed, matters prejudicial to 
the Council’s interests, individual disciplinary or grievance matters and matters 
unlikely to result in improvements for local people.

Page 5



Subject Sovereign Centre Site

Brief Scope (outline for 
review)

To make informative recommendations following consultations with relevant professionals 
regarding what types of development may be appropriate for  the current Sovereign Centre site 
once it becomes vacant, as well as identifying what may not be appropriate in the best interest 
of the public and the Council’s strategic objectives.

Suggested Consultation Relevant Council officers and planning professionals, both internal and external, and public 
opinion.

Reasons for Review and Supporting Information (continue on a separate sheet if necessary)

Reasons for Review: 

1. Why should topic be reviewed? The site of the current Sovereign Centre will become vacant if the new centre is 
progressed and members of the public will have a not unsurprising interest in the 
potential future use of the site.

2. How does it link to Council’s 
strategic aims and priorities?

3. What benefits could result in 
conducting this review?

Open and transparent evidences based review to identify any restrictions and 
regulations regarding future development of this site. Gaining public insight into any 
suggestions and recommendations regarding what the site could become and 
managing expectations as to what may be achievable.

Supporting Evidence: 

1. What evidence is there to 
support the reasons and need 
for a scrutiny review?

This is a key seafront site and will have significant interest from members of the public

2. What are the facts? The site of the current Sovereign Centre will become vacant in 2020 if the proposed 
new development goes ahead and no decision or recommendations have yet been 
made as to its potential future use.

P
age 6



Desired Outcome: 
 
1. What would you wish to see 

happen as a result of any 
review?

The Scrutiny Committee to make informed recommendations to guide the thinking of 
Cabinet when it comes to making a decision regarding what would and would not be 
acceptable or achievable to develop on this site.

2. Why do you think the desired 
outcome is achievable as a 
result of a review?

The review would be evidence based and underpinned by the knowledge and 
experience of planning professionals, whether internal and external, and other 
consultees.

Name: (please print) Cllr Penny di Cara

Signed:

Date: 1 Aug 2017

Please complete and return this form to the Scrutiny Officer, Town Hall, Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4UG.  Email the form 
to Jazmin.Victory@lewes.gov.uk Should you have any queries about completing the form please telephone 01323 415811

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received: Date Acknowledged:

Decision Date: Decision;  Accept          Reject          Defer

Date Decision Notified: By:

P
age 7

mailto:Jazmin.Victory@lewes.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – SOVEREIGN CENTRE TASK GROUP

6th June 2018

Sovereign Centre – Planning Policy Position

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At its meeting in September 2017, Scrutiny committee endorsed the creation of 
a Sovereign Centre Task Group.

1.2 The proposed scope for the Task Group is:

To make informative recommendations following consultations with relevant 
professionals regarding what types of development may be appropriate for the 
current Sovereign Centre site once it becomes vacant, as well as identifying 
what may not be appropriate in the best interest of the public and the Council’s 
strategic objectives.

1.3 The proposed terms of reference of the task group are:

i) To understand the planning policy considerations of the Sovereign Centre 
site;

ii) To consider options for the site, as presented by officers and;
iii) To recommend a preferred option for the site to the Cabinet on 20 March 

2019.

1.4 This reports aims to provide members with an initial understanding of the 
planning policy considerations relating to the future development of the 
Sovereign Centre site. 

2.0 Context

2.1 The Sovereign Centre occupies a coastal location approximately 1.5 miles 
(2.5km) north east of Eastbourne town centre. It is located adjacent to the 
Sovereign roundabout at a gateway to the seafront from the A22 and A259 from 
the east. The Sovereign Centre site, including the drop-off area to the front of 
the building and the open space to the rear of the building, amounts to an area 
of approximately 1.67 hectares. 

2.2 The site was originally part of the shingle bank that made up the Crumbles. Prior 
to the construction of the Sovereign Centre, part of the site was used as a 
landfill site that was tipped until 1975. The household waste was removed 
during the development of the Sovereign Centre. 

2.3 Historic mapping and planning application data also suggests that part of the 

Page 9



site was used as a tramway depot, servicing the Eastbourne Miniature Tramway 
that ran for just under a mile between Princes Park and the Crumbles from 1955 
until 1969. 

2.4 The original Sovereign Centre was built and opened in 1977. Later, a large 
extension was added, which opened in 1989. The Sovereign Centre contains 
lanes swimming, training pool, playpool, gym, sports hall, café and associated 
offices and storage. Immediately to the west of the Sovereign Centre is Monarch 
House, a block of 52 flats that was constructed at the same time as the 1989 
extension. 

2.5 The Sovereign Centre attracts approximately 600,000 visits each year, although 
usage is mainly from local residents as it is not considered to be an attraction for 
visitors. However, the Sovereign Centre does have some issues in terms of the 
building that means that it is not as effective or attractive as it could potentially 
be.

2.6 It is understood that there are a number of design issues with the Sovereign 
Centre, particularly due to the location of the entrance to the centre meaning 
that fully clothed users share the same space as bathers. This means that there 
is a general perception that the Sovereign Centre is unclean. It is also 
understood that the income from the Gym at the Sovereign Centre subsidises 
the cost of the swimming pools.
 

2.7 In December 2016, Cabinet approved the construction of a new leisure centre 
adjacent to the Sovereign Centre in order to: 

 address the weaknesses in design of the current centre
 spend capital on a new building with a 40 year life rather than addressing 

maintenance issues on a building dating from the 1970/80s
 provide additional facilities which will extend the leisure offer to both 

residents and visitors
 provide a building which is attractive to commercial operators and so able to 

fund the revenue costs of the capital investment.

2.8 This proposal involves the demolition of the existing Sovereign Centre, which 
will then provide an opportunity for alternative future uses of this key site on the 
seafront.

3.0 Planning History

3.1 Since the implementation of the Town and Country Planning Act 1947, which 
established that planning permission is required for land development, various 
planning permissions have been granted in respect of the Sovereign Centre 
site.

Page 10



3.2 Through the late 1950s to mid-1960s, there were a number of temporary 
permissions for the retention of an existing tramway garage and depot building.
 

3.3 In 1963, an application for the construction of an Oceanarium was approved, 
and later that year a permission was granted for the construction of a swimming 
pool on the Oceanarium site. 

3.4 An outline application for an indoor swimming pool sports complex was granted 
permission in 1973 (EB/1973/0734). The reserved matters application was 
approved in 1974 (EB/1974/0027).

3.5 Following the construction of the original Sovereign Centre, an outline 
application for a squash centre and ancillary facilities adjacent to the existing 
Sovereign Centre (EB/1983/0052) was approved in 1983, although this 
permission was never implemented.

3.6 An outline application for a front extension to the Sovereign Centre and the 
construction of residential/holiday accommodation (Monarch House) was 
approved in 1985 (EB/1985/0301), with conditions including a requirement for 
the residential element to be fully integrated with the remainder of the 
development and not laid out or designed so that it has a visual appearance of 
being a separate entity. The subsequent reserved matters application 
(EB/1986/0638) was approved unconditionally in 1987. 

3.7 Since the construction of the Sovereign Centre in 1989, there have been 
permissions granted for: a draught lobby to emergency exit in 1989; advertising 
banners in 1993 and 1998; installation of replacement entrance doors in 2001; 
an entrance canopy at front of building in 2003; and external hoarding in 2005. 
An application for installation of solar panels to the south facing and flat roof 
was made in 2012 but withdrawn before it could be determined. 

4.0 Site Analysis

4.1 The Sovereign Centre is an irregular shaped building, facing approximately 
north-west, with a footprint of approximately 6,335 sqm. The design and layout 
of the building clearly shows that it was constructed in two phases, with the 
original, smaller building to the rear adjacent to the promenade, and the 
extension to the front of the building being larger with a more modern 
appearance. The site area, including the drop-off space to the front and open 
space to the rear, amounts to approximately 1.67 hectares.  

4.2 The Sovereign Centre site itself is relatively flat, although at the rear it slopes up 
towards the promenade. The site also drops down towards the car park to the 

Page 11



north-east of the site. There is also a lower area at the front part of the site to 
allow access to a subway underneath Royal Parade. 
 

4.3 The Sovereign Centre building has a number of elements of different heights. It 
is approximately 4/5 storeys tall at its heighest point, although the majority of the 
building is approximately 3/4 storeys tall. The front part of the building has a 
pitched roof, whilst the rear part of the building has a flat roof.

4.4 The existing car park to the north-east of the Sovereign Centre is approximately 
one storey lower than the existing ground floor level of the Sovereign Centre 
and contains approximately 280 spaces. Parts of the Sovereign Centre are also 
subterranean, including the sports hall in the eastern part of the building. To the 
west of the Sovereign Centre building is a small enclosed area that was 
previously used as a play area ancillary to the leisure centre. 

4.5 National Cycle Network Route 21 runs adjacent to the site between the 
Sovereign Centre and the car park, from the roundabout to the promenade.
 

4.6 There are tall buildings surrounding the Sovereign Centre site, which offers the 
opportunity to provide a large sized building on the site that is still in keeping 
with surrounding locality.

4.7 Monarch House, immediately to the east of the Sovereign Centre, is five storeys 
in height with undercroft parking, and therefore approximately 18 metres tall at 
its highest point. It contains 52 flats, predominantly consisting of 2-bedrooms. 
The building is stepped at the sides so is not a solid block of the same height, 
but each part has a flat roof. As such, it has been described as being ‘inspired 
by a gleaming ocean liner’. The development also contains communal lawned 
gardens to the rear of the building. 

4.8 The topography of the site means that, although the parking is at lower ground 
floor level from the entrance to the site via Royal Parade, the land to the south 
of the site rises to the promenade, making it appear as basement parking from 
this perspective. 

4.9 Adjacent to the Sovereign Centre site to the north is Regency Park, a modern 
development that contains four large blocks of flats alongside a number of 
three-storey townhouses. The Regency Park blocks are six storeys in height 
with undercroft parking, approximately 20 metres tall. These buildings also have 
flat roofs. 

5.0 Land Ownership

5.1 Eastbourne Borough Council owns the freehold to the whole o the Sovereign 

Page 12



Centre site.  With regard to Title, the site is divided into three areas:

 Title EB8435 –Land at The Crumbles lying to the south of the road from 
Langney Point to Crumbles Road

 Title ESX315839 – part of the Promenade and Foreshore Eastbourne)
 Title ESX274439 – Land at The Crumbles

5.2 The majority of the proposed development site is subject to various restrictive 
covenants, one of which prevents the land from being used “as a school or for 
any educational purpose or as a public house or beershop”.

5.3 In addition, there is a restriction on the use of the site for “any trade or business 
whatsoever or otherwise as a private dwellinghouse without the consent in 
writing of the Duke his heirs or assigns”.

5.4 The formal consent of the Chatsworth Estate for any proposed development in 
contravention of the restrictions would therefore be required.

6.0 Planning Policy Considerations

6.1 The Development Plan for Eastbourne that identifies the planning policy position 
is made up of a number of planning policy documents, including the Eastbourne 
Borough Plan 2001-2011 (adopted 2003, saved indefinitely 2007) and the 
Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan 2006-2027 (adopted 2013). 

6.2 The Core Strategy identifies 14 separate neighbourhoods in the town. The 
Sovereign Centre site is located within the Seaside neighbourhood, but 
immediately adjacent to the boundary with the St Anthony’s & Langney Point 
neighbourhood. 

6.3 The Vision for the Seaside neighbourhood as identified in the Core Strategy is: 
Seaside will experience reduced levels of deprivation and enhance its level of 
sustainability, whilst reversing the decline in commercial and business activity, 
playing an important role in the delivery of housing, expanding its contribution to 
tourism and conserving its historic areas.

6.4 Core Strategy Policy C3: Seaside Neighbourhood Policy states that the Vision 
will be promoted by a number of measures including those below that are 
relevant to the development of the Sovereign Centre site:

 Providing new housing through redevelopments, change of use and 
conversion of floorspace above shops;

 Resisting the loss of greenspaces, including playing fields, amenity spaces, 
play areas and parks and gardens;

 Encouraging sustainable travel through the provision of safe walking and 

Page 13



cycling routes; and
 Encouraging opportunities for renewable energy generation including 

potential for district heating networks.

6.5 The Seaside neighbourhood is also identified as a ‘Sustainable Neighbourhood’ 
through Core Strategy Policy B1. 

6.6 Borough Plan Policy TO9: Commercial Uses on Seafront restricts the change of 
use of properties to commercial or retail uses, other than hotels and guest 
houses and their ancillary restaurants/bar facilities, except in specific 
circumstances such as there being no material change to the external 
appearance of the building. The purpose of this policy is to maintain the 
condition of the Seafront buildings to a high standard so that it is distinguished 
from the Seafronts of other resorts.

6.7 The land adjacent to the Sovereign Centre to the east is allocated through 
Borough Plan Policy LCF12 and Core Strategy Policy C13 for leisure use 
development. This will be the site of the new leisure centre.  

6.8 The site is just outside of the Preferred Area for Tourist Attractions and Facilities 
as defined by Borough Plan Policy TO7. 

6.9 The site is within 250 metres of a former landfill site, so in order to comply with 
Borough Plan Policy NE16 risk will need to be assessed and if necessary any 
remedial action will need to take place. 

6.10 Due to the nature of its location, the site is also in an area of Tidal Flood Risk. 
As such, Borough Plan Policy US5 requires that consultation on any proposal 
be undertaken with the Environment Agency and construction standards and 
floor level requirements be complied with. 

6.11 Due to the location of Monarch House adjacent to the site, consideration will 
need to be given to residential amenity (Borough Plan HO20) and not cause an 
unacceptable loss of outlook; loss of privacy by overlooking from habitable 
rooms; overshadowing and/or loss of light; or noise, general disturbance or 
odour.

6.12 Borough Plan Policy UHT2: Height of Buildings requires new development be of 
a height similar and conform with that of the majority of surrounding buildings 
and take full account of its effect on the skyline and long distance views

6.13 In the event that a residential use for the site is proposed, a development of 11 
or more units on the site would be required to make a 30% affordable housing 
contribution, in accordance with Core Strategy Policy D5: Housing and the 

Page 14



associated Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document.

6.14 Overall, existing policy within the Borough Plan and Core Strategy does not 
point to a particular use for the site, although it does set some parameters that 
will need to be considered in assessing the most suitable future use, such as 
the need to consider residential amenity.

6.15 Current Status of the Local Plan

6.15.1 Despite this, it should be noted that Eastbourne is unable to demonstrate a five 
year supply of housing land, and it has been over five years since the adoption 
of the Core Strategy. As such, legislation and national guidance says that the 
Local Plan is out of date. In this situation, applications for development should 
be judged against the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

6.15.2 Preparation of a new Local Plan for Eastbourne has commenced and is 
currently in its early stages. The new Local Plan will identify the overall 
development requirements for the Borough, and contain policies to meet those 
requirements. It also provides an opportunity to review sites and consider 
allocating sites for particular uses. Therefore, the new Local Plan could allocate 
the Sovereign Centre site for an appropriate use. 

6.15.3 Currently, the first round of consultation on the new Eastbourne Local Plan is 
scheduled for summer 2019, with public examination by the Planning 
Inspectorate taking place in the first half of 2020 and adoption in late 2020 or 
early 2021. 

6.15.4 As part of the evidence base for the new Local Plan, a Strategic Housing & 
Employment Land Availability Assessment [SHELAA] was published in 2017. 
The purpose of the SHELAA is to provide an up to date assessment of land 
supply in the borough and help to identify land for new housing and employment 
land uses to meet identified needs in the new Local Plan. 

6.15.5 The SHELAA assessed the Sovereign Centre site and identifies it as being 
potentially developable for both residential and commercial uses, subject to 
sensitive design to the surrounding open spaces. The SHELAA provides an 
indicative capacity of 140 residential units, based on a flatted development with 
an average density of 84 dwellings per hectare; or approximately 5,000 sqm of 
commercial floorspace. This is an indicative capacity of the site; the actual 
capacity has not been tested and will depend on the type of use being 
proposed.

7.0 Development Considerations

Page 15



7.1 Design

7.1.1 Considering the site’s location in a prominent position on the Sovereign 
Roundabout, adjacent to Lottbridge Drove and at the eastern end of the 
Seafront, the site should be regarded as a landmark site at a gateway to the 
town. As a landmark site, it is considered that the site could provide an 
opportunity for a building of considerable height, scale, form and design. 

7.1.2 It is considered that any landmark building(s) could be of a contemporary design 
that adds interest to the townscape and becomes a focal point in the landscape. 
Furthermore, having regard to the site’s prominence when viewed from 
Lottbridge Drove and from the seafront, the design of the rear elevation of any 
development must be as attractive as the front. Considering the location of the 
site, there would be the opportunity to incorporate viewing points at key points in 
any building. 

7.1.3 When considering materials, regard should be given to the Seafront location 
and associated exposure to maritime conditions. Regard should also be given to 
energy efficiency measures in the design. 

7.1.4 Any potential development should allow pedestrian and cycle access through 
from the Sovereign Roundabout to the promenade, and allow the retention of 
the National Cycle Network route. 

7.2 Height

7.2.1 Having regard to the gateway location of the site and the surrounding buildings, 
this indicates that any building on the site could be a maximum of six storeys in 
height from the basement level of the existing Sovereign Centre. This would 
allow this space to potentially be used as undercroft parking. A building of this 
size would rise to a height of five storeys from the level of Prince William 
Parade, and therefore would be slightly lower than Monarch House, minimising 
the impact of development on the site. In additional, any building on the site 
should incorporate a flat roof.  

7.3 Access

7.3.1 The most appropriate access would be to continue the existing arrangement via 
Sovereign roundabout. This will also be the access for the new leisure centre. 

7.3.2 East Sussex County Council provide guidance on the amount of parking 
required depending on the type of development. Car parking will need to be 
considered in any potential use of the site, as a use that is going to generate a 

Page 16



significant number of trips will require a level of car parking provision that may 
not be able to be accommodated on site. A shared car park with the new leisure 
centre may be an option if it can be demonstrate that there will be sufficient 
capacity for both uses. 

7.4 Landscape

7.4.1 The landscaping of the site should have regard to the effect of traffic movement 
surrounding the site, particularly on the Sovereign Roundabout, and the 
associated noise and disturbance on the amenities of future uses. 

7.4.2 Bearing in mind the openness of Five Acre Field to the north, Sovereign Park to 
the east and the close proximity to the Seafront, any proposed planting should 
be tolerant to maritime exposure and in particular to salt laden winds.

7.5 Services and Utilities 

7.5.1 A foul water sewer runs to the north of the site alongside Wartling Road, through 
the Sovereign Roundabout and alongside Prince William Parade. 

7.5.2 There is a medium pressure gas pipeline running south to the east of the 
Sovereign Roundabout, and a low pressure gas pipeline within the boundary of 
the site running east-west direction along the access road and in front of the 
existing drop-off point and along the western side of the Sovereign Centre 
where it connects to the Sovereign Centre building and Monarch House. There 
are exclusion zones around the medium pressure gas pipeline within which 
development cannot take place, although it is not considered that this will 
significantly impact the development of the Sovereign Centre site. 

7.6 Flood risk

7.6.1 The majority of the site, with the exception of the banked land to the south of the 
site, is within Tidal Flood Zone 3a (High Probability of Flooding) although the 
site is protected by coastal sea defences to a 1 in 200 year event standard. 
Development proposals would need to satisfy the ‘sequential test’ in order to 
locate the most vulnerable parts of development away from the highest areas of 
risk in the first instance. Certain types of development, for example residential 
development, would also need to satisfy the ‘exception test’ to show that the 
development would be sustainable; protect vulnerable users; and not increase 
the risk of flooding elsewhere. 

8.0 Conclusion

8.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the planning policy position relating to 

Page 17



the Sovereign Centre site.

8.2 An analysis of local plan policies that apply to the site shows that there are no 
existing policies that point to a particular use for the site, although there are 
policies that should be considered in assessing the most suitable future use, 
such as the need to consider residential amenity.

8.3 However, it should also be noted that the current Local Plan is out of date, and a 
new Local Plan is currently being prepared to replace it. The new Local Plan 
provides an opportunity to allocate and plan for the most suitable and 
sustainable use of the site, without any of the restrictions of the existing policy. 

8.4 The site is considered to be a gateway location, and as such could take a 
landmark building. The height of the surrounding development, particularly 
Monarch House, would allow a relatively tall building to be sited, although views 
through the site would be an important consideration. 

8.5 Use of the site can now be considered within this context, and it is likely that 
there will be some uses that are more appropriate than others. However there is 
no guarantee that developers/operators of what may be considered the most 
appropriate uses would be interested in developing the site. Therefore, as part 
of the future analysis of options, some market testing may be required in order 
to determine the market’s view of the most appropriate use of the site.

Page 18


	Agenda
	6 Sovereign Centre Scrutiny Task Group - Preliminary Meeting
	Scrutiny Review Request - Sovereign Centre Site
	Sovereign Centre - Planning Policy Position


